
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 6 April 2022Wednesday, 

6 April 2022.  
 01476 406080 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Licensing 
Committee  

     
 

 

Thursday, 14 April 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor Robert Broughton, Councillor George 
Chivers, Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Ms Jane 
Kingman, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Nikki Manterfield and Councillor Lee 
Steptoe 
 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 7) 

4.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
It is anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the press and public may be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of the following item of business because of 
the likelihood that otherwise exempt information, as described in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Act (as amended) would be disclosed. 
  

 

5.   Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 
Report ENV808 from the Licensing Officer. 
 
 

(Pages 9 - 35) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

6.   Application to renew a Sex Shop Licence 
Pulse & Cocktails, A1 southbound, Stoke Rochford, Grantham 
 
Report ENV809 from the Licensing Officer. 
 

(Pages 37 - 80) 

7.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 



 

 

MINUTES 
 

Licensing Committee 
 

Friday, 12 November 2021, 10:00 

                  
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing) 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Anne-Marie Coulthard (Assistant Director, Operations and Public Protection) 
Heather Green (Team Leader Licensing) 
Chris Clarke (Licensing Officer) 
Elizabeth Reeve (Licensing Officer) 
Mandy Braithwaite (Legal Advisor) 
Lucy Bonshor (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

21. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Broughton, Kaberry-Brown 
and Steptoe. 

 
22. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
23. Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2021 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2021 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED. 
 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



24. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to exclude the press and public. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the press and public were excluded from the meeting under Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) during 
consideration of the following item of business only because of the likelihood 
that otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the 
Act (as amended) would be disclosed to them. 

 
25. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - ENV792 

 
DECISION: 
 
To refuse to issue a licence to drive a Private Hire vehicle on the grounds that 
the applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence under 
Section 51 (1)(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 
 
The Legal Advisor introduced those present and confirmed the name of the 
applicant who was in attendance. 
 
The Licensing Officer presented report ENV792 which concerned whether the 
applicant before the Committee was a fit and proper person to hold a private hire 
licence.   

 
The Licensing Officer informed the Committee that the application was in respect of 
a private hire licence and not a hackney carriage licence.  The applicant had 
applied for a licence in July 2021 and noted a conviction dated March 2021 for an 
incident that occurred in August 2019 for which a caution was accepted.  It was 
noted that the applicant had not stated on the application form that he had been 
refused an application by another authority.    The applicants DBS certificate 
confirmed the caution.  The DBS certificate submitted was from Boston and the 
Licensing Officer contacted Boston Borough Council who confirmed that the 
applicant had submitted an application which had been refused.  The applicant 
currently held a Transport for London licence which expired in November 2022. 
 
The applicant then presented his case to the Committee and the circumstances 
which led to the conviction and subsequent caution.  Members questioned the 
applicant about the incident and the Legal Advisor read out a definition in respect of 
the conviction for clarity.   
 
The Licensing Officer then gave his closing statement.  Members were asked to 
consider the report and appendices before them and any representations made 
during the meeting and decide whether to: 
 
- Issue a licence to drive a private hire; or 

4



- Refuse to issue a licence to drive a private hire on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence under Section 
51 (1)(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
The applicant had nothing further to add. 

 
(10:15am the Licensing Officers and applicant left the meeting) 
 
Members discussed the application before them having regard to the report and 
representations made.  Concern was expressed about the applicant’s behaviour 
and that the application form had not been completed correctly. Member’s attention 
was drawn to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy which 
advised that the term for the applicant to reapply following the conviction was 10 
years.  It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the applicant was not a fit and 
proper person to hold a private hire driver’s licence. 
 
(10:25am Licensing Officers and applicant returned to the meeting) 
 
The Legal Advisor read out the Committee’s decision. The Committee had taken 
into consideration the report, appendices, representations made, legislation, South 
Kesteven’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and the 
Department of Transports Standards for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers.  
Public safety was paramount and the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Policy indicated that the base line in respect of convictions in this instance was 10 
years before considering an application. The Committee had taken a stern view 
with regard to the failure to complete the application honestly. The Committee had 
therefore decided that the applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold a 
private hire licence under Section 51 (1) (1) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and refused the grant of a licence. 

 
The Committee’s decision was appealable to the Magistrates Court within 21 days.   
 
The Committee returned to open session. 

 
26. Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 

 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing introduced the 
report which considered feedback following the adoption of a reviewed Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Policy at the beginning of April 2021.    The Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy provided a framework upon which the 
Authority delivered its statutory functions in relation to hackney carriage and private 
hire licensing.   
 
Since the policy was adopted, feedback had been received on the standard 
required to be reached in the English language skills test.  The English Tests were 
purchased from Versant to ensure an unbiased and consistent approach and the 
tests were used by a number of local authorities. 

 
The current pass rate was 58 out of 80, this level was equivalent to B2 on the 
Common European Framework of Reference for Languages and Members 

5



attention was drawn to Appendix 2 of the report which gave a full explanation. Since 
the new policy had been adopted 7 applicants had taken the test with only 1 
applicant passing the test. 
 
Members asked questions on how the tests were carried out, how long they were 
and where the tests were held.  Also whether the Licensing Officers had taken the 
test and whether any conversations took place with the applicants.   
 
The Licensing Team Leader replied to the questions and confirmed that an officer 
had taken the test and had purposely made mistakes but had still passed.   
Discussion followed on the limit that had been set and some Members felt that it 
was set too high and this had been raised when the Policy was discussed at an 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  It was proposed and seconded 
that the pass rate be set at 54 towards the top of the B1 category.  Some Members 
felt that this was still too high and it was proposed and seconded to have a lower 
pass limit of between 46 and 47, however on being put to the vote this proposal 
failed.  The proposal for the pass rate to be reduced to 54 towards the top of the B1 
category was then voted on.  On being put to the vote it was AGREED. 

 
DECISION: 
 
That the Licensing Committee recommended to the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee that the pass rate for the Versant English tests be 
reduced to 54 towards the top of the B1 category.      

 
27. Review of the Street Trading Policy and Introduction of a Street Collection & 

House to House Collection Policy 
 

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing presented the report 
on proposals to update the existing Street Trading policy and the introduction of a 
Street Collection and House to House Collection policy.  
 
The Street Trading policy provided a framework upon which the Licensing Authority 
delivered its functions in relation to street trading activities.  The review had been 
undertaken to check that the policy was fit for purpose and a robust application 
process was in place.  Member’s attention was drawn to Appendix 1 and 2 of the 
report where the changes were highlighted in red, Appendix 1, and specific details 
on the changes were given in, Appendix 2.  It was noted that ice cream vans, 
mobile sandwich and hot food sellers now required a consent to bring them in line 
with other types of street trading consents. 

 
Currently the authority did not have a Street Collection policy but followed the 
Regulations that were applicable to all Street Collection Permits.    The production 
of a policy provided clarity to applicants, officers and committee Members and 
supported a consistent approach.  Anyone who collected money or sold articles for 
the benefit of charitable or other purposes in any street or public place must hold a 
Street Collection or House to House Collection permit.  A copy of the proposed draft 
policy was shown at Appendix 3.  It was noted that there was no legal duty to 
consult on the proposed policies, however it was good practice to consult on any 

6



new policy and a four week consultation period would be recommended to the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
One Member raised concern about professional begging in Stamford and it was 
stated that if they were causing a nuisance then the Police or his Policing 
Neighbourhood Team should be contacted.  A query was raised in relation to the 
wording at section 5, who should apply for a permit as it was felt that it was not 
clear.  
 
Members congratulated officers on the policy documents before them.  It was 
proposed, seconded and AGREED to recommend to the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee that a four week consultation was carried out in respect of 
the policies.      

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Licensing Committee recommended to the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee that the updated Street Trading Policy and the 
proposed Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy were 
subject to a four week consultation.  
 

28. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent. 

 
None. 

 
29. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 11:00am. 

 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

9

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 Licensing Committee 
 ENV 809 

 14 April 2022 

  

   

         
  

 

Licensing Act 2003: Application to renew a Sex 
Establishment Licence – Pulse & Cocktails, A1 
Southbound, Stoke Rochford 

Committee to determine an application to renew a Sex Establishment Licence – Pulse & Cocktails, 
A1 Southbound, Stoke Rochford.   

 

 

Report Author 

Chris Clarke, Licensing Officer 

 
01476 406080 

 licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growing the Economy Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader 04 April 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 

The Committee to decide whether to approve the renewal application for a Sex Shop 
Licence in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009). 
 
 
 

 

 

37

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

 

1.1     The Policing and Crime Act 2009 amends Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to permit the Licensing Authority to license Sex shops. 

 
1.2 A Sex Shop means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used for a business which consists 

to a significant degree of selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating – 

a. sex articles; or                                                                                                                                                              
 
b. other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or 

encouraging- 
 
c. sexual activity; or 
 
d. acts of force or restraint which is associated with sexual activity.  This includes adult 

films and magazines.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                                

1.3 Each application will be determined on its own merits. However, applications may only be 
refused on certain defined mandatory or discretionary grounds.  These are: 

 

 Mandatory grounds 

 The Council must refuse an application if: - 

a. the applicant is under 18 years of age; or 

b. the applicant is for the time being disqualified from holding a licence under Schedule 

3 Paragraph 17 (3) of the Act following revocation of a previous licence; or 

c. the person applying is not resident in the United Kingdom, or was not so resident 

during period of six months immediately preceding the date when the application was 

made; or 

d. where a body corporate is the applicant - it is not incorporated in the United Kingdom; 

or 

e. the applicant has been refused the grant or renewal of a licence for the same premises 

within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the date when the application was 

made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal. 

Discretionary grounds 

The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a licence if: - 

a. the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of conviction of an offence or 

for any other reason; 

b. the business would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than 

the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if 

he made the application himself; 

38



 

 
 

c. the number of sex establishments or sex establishments of a particular type in the 

relevant locality at the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number 

which the Council consider is appropriate for that locality; 

d. “the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard – 

(i)  to the character of the relevant locality; or 

(ii)  to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or 

(ii)  to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect 

of which the application is made.” 

1.4      The applicant has run a sex shop at these premises since April 2009.  There have been no 

complaints about these premises during this time. 

1.5 We received the renewal application and a fee of £1777.75p for Pulse & Cocktails to hold a 

Sex Shop Licence on 2 March 2022 and we have received no objections during the 28-day 

consultation period. (Appendix 3)  

1.6 They are not varying the licence in any way and are only applying to renew the licence as it 

stands.  The days and times the premises are open are: 

 Mon – Sunday, 09.00 to 2200hrs (including Bank Holidays) 

2 Options available to the Committee 

2.1 When determining the application, the Committee shall have regard to: 

a. The authority’s sex establishment procedures. (Appendix 1) 

b. The Human Rights Act 1998. 

c. SKDC’s regulations prescribing standard conditions. (Appendix 2) 

d. Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

2.2 The options open to the Committee are: 

a. To renew the application as applied for. 

b. To renew the application with modifications and/or additional conditions. 

c. Refuse the renewal.  If, having considered the renewal application the committee   

decides to refuse it, it must provide the applicant with the reasons for the decision in 

writing. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 If a licence is granted the appropriate licence fee as outlined in the report will need to be 

levied upon the establishment.  The only other potential financial impact is in the event of 

an applicant making an appeal against a decision which was then subsequently upheld, the 

Council may incur additional legal costs. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

 

39



 

 
 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 The grant, renewal and transfer of licences for sex establishments are governed by the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing & 

Crime Act 2009.  The Committee should consider any representations from the Chief Officer 

of Police or any other person who objects to the application and has submitted a 

representation in writing.  The proper grounds for considering the application are found 

within the body of the report.  The decision to grant or refuse the licence must be reasonable 

and proportionate and made in accordance with the attached sex establishment procedures. 

Any refusal must be supported by evidence that the statutory grounds for refusal are met 

and full reasons must be given to the applicant.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 Not applicable. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 None applicable. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 None applicable. 

8 Appendices 

 1. SKDC – Sex Establishment Procedures 

 2. SKDC – Standard Conditions 

 3. Pulse & Cocktail application 

9 Background Papers 

 Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Human Rights Act 1998 

 

40

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1982/30/pdfs/ukpga_19820030_en.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents


41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2021
	5 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	6 Application to renew a Sex Shop Licence<br/>Pulse & Cocktails, A1 southbound, Stoke Rochford, Grantham
	Appendix 1 Pulse and Cocktails 2022
	Appendix 2 Pulse and Cocktails 2022
	Appendix 3 Pulse and Cocktails 2022


